
 

 

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 3 December 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, S M Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, R Clark, R Grocock, M Howard, J L King, 
R Perkins, R M Rudkin, M D Seymour, E J Sneath, A C Tennant, 
D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) and S Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may 
be appointed only from members who are not on the Cabinet.  
Substitutions apply for individual meetings only.  
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   25 November 2013 
 



A G E N D A 
 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following 
meetings: 
 

 

a)   Special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel - 14 October 2013 (copy enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
1 - 4) 

b)   Performance Monitoring Panel - 15 October 2013 (copy enclosed) (Pages 
5 - 20) 

3.  Declarations of Interest. - (Members are no longer required to declare 
personal of prejudicial interests but are to declare any new Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests that are not currently included in their Register of 
Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Proposed ICT Improvements for Councillors - To improve Councillors’ 
ease of access to Council systems via their existing laptops (report of 
the ICT Director, Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd 
enclosed). 
 
The Managing Director of Compass Point Business Services (East 
Coast) Ltd, the ICT Director (Compass Point Business Services (East 
Cost) Ltd, the ICT and Customer Services Manager and the Portfolio 
Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
will be in attendance at the meeting. 
 

(Pages 
21 - 26) 

5.  Questions asked under Council Procedure Rule 10.3.  
 

 

6.  Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

7.  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.  
 

 

8.  Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
27 - 34) 

9.  CSU update - To update the Performance Monitoring Panel on progress 
made at the CSU (report of the CSU General Manager enclosed). 
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 
35 - 38) 



10.  Annual Inspection of Planning Files - To consider how any potential 
gaps in the recording of planning advice can be rectified. 
 
The Planning Manager will be in attendance to provide information on 
verbal planning advice and how this is recorded. 
 
Please refer to minute number 28 of the minutes to the Performance 
Monitoring Panel meeting held on 15 October 2013, attached at agenda 
item 2b. 
 

 

11.  Review of Implemented Planning Decisions - To consider changes and 
improvements to the next review. 
 
The Planning Manager will be in attendance to consider with the Panel 
how the review process can be improved in the future. 
 
Please refer to minute number 29 of the minutes to the Performance 
Monitoring Panel meeting held on 15 October 2013, attached at agenda 
item 2b. 
 

 

12.  Scrutiny Action Plan - To agree a Scrutiny Action Plan following the 
Away Day held on 16 October 2013 (report of the Assistant Director – 
Democratic Services enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
39 - 46) 

13.  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Assistant Director Democratic Services enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
47 - 54) 

14.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Monday, 14 October 2013 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

  
 

 

G R Aley 
D Ashby 
A Casson 
P E Coupland 
G K Dark 
 

R Grocock 
A Harrison 
M Howard 
J L King 
R Perkins 
 

R M Rudkin 
M D Seymour 
E J Sneath 
D J Wilkinson 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors F Biggadike, 
M D Booth, S M Booth, C J T H Brewis, R Clark, A Miller, S Slade and S Wilkinson.  
 
In Attendance:  Councillors A M Newton and P S Przyszlak, Principal Member 
Services Officer, Member and Electoral Services Team Leader and Assistant Director 
Democratic Services 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE DURATION OF THE JOINT MEETING  
 
Consideration was given as to who should preside over the special joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That Councillor B Alcock be elected Chairman for the duration of the special joint 
meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel.   
 

2. REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION - COMMITTEE STRUCTURE  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Constitution Working Group which 
detailed the review of the Constitution – Committee Structure and Committee Terms 
of Reference.     
 
South Holland and Breckland District Councils constitutions were based on the model 
constitution, they had however developed over the years taking into account changes 
in legislation and new partnership arrangements.  These changes meant that there 
was a risk that the constitutions were out of date and inconsistent.  Both authorities 
had made it very clear that they were to remain distinctly separate with their own 
governance arrangements.  The review offered the opportunity to align, where 
possible, the two constitutions.  This was for ease of navigation and understanding 
for those officers working within a shared environment.   
 

Agenda Item 2.a)

Page 1



- 2 - 

 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 14 October 2013 

 

 

The Constitution Review Working Group was formed at full Council on 10 April 2013, 
to work jointly with Breckland District Council.  The group comprised of three 
members from South Holland; Councillors Worth, Przyszlak and Newton.    
 
Since it has been established the working group met regularly with Breckland’s 
Working Group, which also comprised of three members; Councillors Jolly, Jermy 
and Bowes.   
 
The Working Group had been focusing on sections 1 – 4 of the Constitution, part of 
this work included a review of the Committee Structures and Terms of Reference.  It 
was felt that as the committee structure underpinned so much of the Constitution it 
was agreed that draft proposals be brought forward for consultation with members of 
scrutiny in the first instance.   
 
Members considered the current South Holland District Council Constitution 
alongside the proposed version, and where changes had been made these were 
highlighted to members.   
 
The Assistant Director, Democratic Services explained that the format of the 
proposed version was different and the Working Group had used Exari; a programme 
that provided a model constitution from which the proposed version had been 
developed.  There was an aim to eliminate much of the repetition the current version 
had, making it more user friendly.  Once the Constitution as a whole had been 
reviewed by the Working Group an independent body would then also review it for 
assurance that all legal aspects were covered.   
 
Concerns were raised by members regarding the proposal to place the Standards 
Panel underneath the Governance and Audit Committee within the Committee 
Structure.  It was felt that there was an importance for the Standards Panel to 
maintain its independence within the structure, given the nature of the role Standards 
played.   
 
It was also noted that the Governance and Audit Committee had an extensive work 
programme, meaning the addition of further commitments could impact on the current 
work load.  Members felt that the role of Governance and Audit was paramount and 
owing to that the membership should be increased from the current 7 available seats, 
whilst still maintaining its current political balance.   
 
Whilst considering the proposed version members also made the following 
comments: 
 

Planning 

• (Page 59 of the agenda) - that reference to ‘trial period’ should be 
removed. 

• (Page 58) Reference is made to footpaths and bridleways etc, 
should reference to Cycleways be included 

 

Page 2



- 3 - 

 

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL - 14 October 2013 

 

 

Licensing 

• (page 65) Should the licensing of Scrap Metal Dealers be included 
in the list of functions? 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 

• (Page 64) Paragraph 21 – remove reference to paragraph 18 

• (Pages 63 and 64) Paragraphs 20 and 22 – clarification is sought 
regarding call-in 

 

Responsibility for Executive Functions 

• (Page 51) Clarification is sought regarding the Portfolio Holders and 
delegated powers. 

• (Page 51) Should there be reference to the Leader’s responsibility 
on Compass Point Business Services 

 

Delegations to Cabinet members 

• (Page 57) Clarification is sought regarding the Portfolio Holders 
powers to amend the scale of fees and charges. 

• Should reference be made to the roles of Junior Portfolio Holders 

• Is it appropriate or effective for Council to be appointing Ad-hoc 
Panels 

 

AGREED: 
 
That the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel noted the 
proposed changes to the Committee Structure and recommended to the Constitution 
Working Group that: 

 

• The Standards Panel should maintain its independence and should 
stand alone in the committee structure rather than being part of the 
Governance and Audit Committee; and 

 

• In order to reflect the increasing role of the Governance and Audit 
Committee its membership should be increased from 7 Councillors 
whilst maintaining its current political proportions. 

 
(The meeting ended at 7.57 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



- 16 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 15 October 2013 at 
6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

G R Aley 
R Clark 
R Grocock 
 

M Howard 
J L King 
R Perkins 
 

R M Rudkin 
M D Seymour 
E J Sneath 
 

In Attendance: The Interim Chief Executive, the Assistant Director, Democratic 
Services, the ICT and Customer Services Manager, the Portfolio Holder for Localism 
and Big Society, the Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and 
Operational Planning, and two officers from NHS England (Leicestershire and 
Lincolnshire Area) – Contracts Manager (Dental and Optometry) and Primary Care 
Support - Contract Management (Dental and Optometry). 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis 
and S Wilkinson  
 

17. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held on 24 July 
2013 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

 
There were none. 
 

19. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.3. 

 
There were none. 
 

20. PROVISION OF MEMBERS' IT  

 
This item was considered earlier than detailed in the agenda as officers from NHS 
England providing an update on dentistry provision within the area were delayed. 
 
At its meeting on 11 December 2012, the Panel had raised concerns regarding 
members’ IT provision, and had received updates from the IT Director at meetings on 
29 January 2013 and 26 March 2013 and from the Service Desk Manager at its last 
meeting on 24 July 2013. 
 
The ICT and Customer Services Manager attended this meeting and advised that no 
officers from Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) were available to attend with 
him.  He provided members with a summary of the issues as he understood them.  
During the discussion, members raised the following concerns: 

Agenda Item 2.b)

Page 5



- 17 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

 

• Was any notice being taken of the concerns raised by members of the Panel?  
Officers had attended meetings and promises had been made, but to date, there 
had been no action. 

• At the last meeting, it had been promised that if members started to bring their 
laptops into the IT Department, that rollout of the new logon process could begin.  
This had not happened. 

• Members advised of continued log on issues. 

• Remote access support did not appear to be working. 

• Was the security level high because of member access to the Council’s intranet 
site, ‘Shine’?  This was not widely used by members therefore, could less security 
be achieved by not having access to ‘Shine’?  Could access be given purely for 
emails? 

• Some members had applications on their laptops that were not for Council use.  
The policy regarding this had to be clarified. 

• Clarity was needed over the replacement of members’ printers. 

• Some members had emails diverted from their South Holland email accounts to 
their own email accounts.  The policy regarding this had to be clarified. 

• Members required clarification over how they should communicate with officers 
within CPBS regarding IT. 

• A number of issues had to be resolved before the next District Council elections.  
The IT provision that members had was not what had been agreed by the ICT 
Working Group prior to the last election, and their views had to be taken on board 
in time for the next election.  Investment in members’ IT equipment used public 
money and should therefore be fit for purpose. 

 
In response to the issues raised, the ICT and Customer Services Manager provided 
the following information: 
 

• CPBS has provided a position statement and it was felt that there was an 
expectation that three voluntary members would test the new processes, and only 
one had done so to date.  CPBS wanted to ensure there was adequate testing 
with the three members before extending the rollout 

• Lack of progress on issues raised by members would be escalated to managers 
and CPBS. 

• Remote access support and service should be expected, and members having to 
bring their laptops in to be fixed was the last resort.  

• Part of IT’s work was about support – it was important to understand who the 
customer was and also their requirements. 

• Communication regarding IT was felt to be satisfactory.  Members needed to 
approach CPBS for issues to be clarified however, clarity was required as to 
where the line was drawn. 
 

Following the discussion, it was agreed that the following actions should be taken: 
 

• The IT Working Group should meet to consider relevant policies, laptop builds 
and current issues. 

Page 6



- 18 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• All issues raised to be escalated to the Director of CPBS. 

• Detailed issues to be discussed with members. 

• An action plan to be put together, along with a timeline, addressing issues raised 
by the Panel.  The action plan and timeline to be circulated within two weeks (by 
the end of October). 

• The ICT and Customer Services Manager to attend the next meeting of the Panel 
in December, together with an officer from CPBS. 

• If no results seen from the action plan/timeline over the ensuing few weeks, the 
Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
also be asked to attend the next Panel meeting in December. 

 
AGREED: 

 
That the following actions be taken to address members’ concerns regarding IT: 
 
(i) That the IT Working Group meet to consider relevant policies, laptop builds 

and current issues; 
(ii) That all issues raised be escalated to the Director of CPBS; 
(iii) That detailed issues be discussed with members; 
(iv) That an action plan be put together, along with a timeline, addressing issues 

raised by the Panel.  The action plan and timeline to be circulated within two 
weeks (by the end of October). 

(v) That the ICT and Customer Services Manager attend the next meeting of the 
Panel in December, together with an officer from CPBS; and 

(vi) That if no results were seen from the action plan/timeline over the ensuing few 
weeks, the Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business 
Development also be asked to attend the next Panel meeting in December.  

 
(The ICT and Customer Services Manager left the meeting following discussion of 
the above item). 
 

21. DENTISTRY IN THE SOUTH HOLLAND AREA  

 
The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Carole Pitcher (Contracts Manager (Dental 
and Optometry)) and Charmaine Docherty (Primary Care Support – Contract 
Management (Dental and Optometry)) from NHS England (Leicestershire and 
Lincolnshire Area).  They had been invited to provide an update to the Panel to 
include the following issues: 
 

• An explanation of what had happened since the last presentation in March 2011, 
including the national changes to the NHS that took effect on 1 April 2013, and 
what they meant; 

• What dental provision was available now in the area, whether there were any 
waiting lists to get onto a preferred list and what urgent cover was available; 

• Public opinion of the quality of the service; 

• Where the provision of service was now and likely to be in the future. 
 
 

Page 7



- 19 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

The update provided the following information: 
 

• NHS England’s predecessor, the PCT, had been abolished on 31 March 2013.  
NHS England was now the commissioning body, with the South Holland area 
being covered by Leicestershire and Lincolnshire, 1 of 27 Area Teams throughout 
the country.  The whole dental remit of primary, secondary and community dental 
services now sat under the area team. 

• With regard to dental provision in the area, the number of practices providing NHS 
dental services was still the same as it had been at the last update in 2011.   

• The dental helpline had now ceased (it had originally been part of the PCT, but 
this function did not sit within the remit of Area Teams). 

• Any patients on the PCT waiting list as at 31 March 2013 had been absorbed into 
practices across the county. 

• Waiting lists were now the responsibility of each individual practice if they chose 
to hold one.  Waiting lists were regularly monitored by the Area Team in order to 
determine potential capacity pressures. 

• In the South Holland area, there were 360 patients waiting to be placed with a 
practice.  Whilst waiting to be placed, they could still access urgent  care through 
1A Dental Practice at the Johnson Community Hospital. 

• Places such as GP Surgeries, Community Pharmacies and A&E Departments 
had been sent refreshed information to direct the public regarding queries on NHS 
Dental Services, including how to access both urgent and routine care.  Copies of 
this information were left by the officers for circulation at the Council offices. 

• Community dental services were provided one day a week at the Johnson 
Community Hospital. 

• Patients could leave both positive and negative comments on the NHS Choices 
website regarding their NHS dental experience.  These comments were regularly 
reviewed by the Area Team and followed up with the practice where required.  At 
this time, there were currently only positive comments against the dental practices 
in the South Holland area. 

• A local dental professional network had been set up and over the next few 
months, a work programme was to be considered, but it was expected to cover 
areas such as specialised dental services, oral health need and secondary care 
dental. 

• Developing primary care strategy – a chapter on dental provision was being 
developed to include the current position, where provision wanted to be, and what 
the potential issues were, patient pathways and experiences.  

• Engagement events were being planned and an invite was extended to members 
to attend to provide input.  Information on the stakeholder event would be sent 
through, but it was tentatively proposed for 3 December 2013. 

 
Following the update, the following issues were raised: 
 

• How many South Holland residents received dental treatment out of the area? 
o Information on patient flow in and out of the area could be collated and 

sent to members after the meeting. 
 

Page 8



- 20 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• What percentage of residents in the South Holland area were registered?  Was 
there a certain number of people who did not bother to register with a dentist? 

o Information was only held on the number of patients seen.  No 
information on numbers was held of people who did not wish to access 
dental provision or who were private patients. 

 

• The numbers did not capture the people who had no dental care. 
o Although there were no exact numbers, some assumptions were made 

with regard to deprived areas and national statistics on the percentage 
of the population who did not want to receive regular ongoing dental 
care, but only access a practice when they had a problem. 

 

• Where would the 360 South Holland patients waiting to be placed with a practice 
be placed? 

o They would be placed at one of four dental practices within the area, or 
patients could choose to travel to a nearby practice.    

 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the update provided by the officers be noted; and 
 
b) That members were satisfied with the update provided and no further updates 

were therefore required unless problems within the provision of dentistry in the 
area arose again. 

 
(Carole Pitcher and Charmaine Docherty left the meeting following discussion of the 
above item.) 
 

22. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
There were none. 
 

23. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL.  

 
There were none. 
 

24. KEY DECISION PLAN  

 
Consideration was given to the current Key Decision Plan, which had been issued on 
4 October 2013. 
 
Members commented that the following items on the Plan used too much ‘jargon’ and 
questioned what they referred to: 
 

• Approval to design and implement a Commercial Hub shared between BDC and 
SHDC – to be considered by Cabinet on 5 November 2013 

• To approve the creation of a shared Customer Access Strategy and specific 
Channel Management Plans and to approve the procurement and implementation 

Page 9



- 21 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

of an electronic service delivery capability to enable customer self-service and 
channel shift – to be considered by Cabinet on 10 December 2013 

 
 The Interim Chief Executive provided a brief explanation of each project. 
 
AGREED: 

 
That the current Key Decision Plan be noted.    
 

25. CRIME AND DISORDER UPDATE  

 
The Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society was in attendance to provide an 
update report on community safety and how it was being delivered through the 
various tiers of Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP).   
 
The Portfolio Holder advised of the following issues: 
 

• The County Strategic Partnership had agreed on five priorities – Anti Social 
Behaviour; Domestic Abuse; Alcohol Harm; Drugs Harm; and Road Safety 

• The East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership had agreed its priorities – 
Anti-Social Behaviour; Violent Crime (including night-time economy and domestic 
abuse); and Community Cohesion (in Boston and South Holland), alongside two 
cross-cutting themes - Alcohol Misuse; and Fear of Crime 

• The Community Safety Partnership held countywide quarterly meetings, after 
which they reported back on their priorities.   

• A report on road safety had been received back.  A target had been set to reduce 
fatalities by 20% by 2020.  A reduction was already being seen, static speed 
cameras were helping with this, and the monies earned from the fines from the 
cameras was all ploughed back into road safety.   

• Fire and Rescue and East Midlands Ambulance Services had put in a successful 
bid for mini ambulances, to the value of £400,000.   

• Anti-Social Behaviour had reduced by 16% 

• Special Constables – There would soon be more than at any time in the last 
decade.  However, the recruitment target of 1000 voluntary PCSOs had still to be 
met, with to date, only 40/50 interested. 

• Liaison between the Community Safety Partnership and the Police and Crime 
Panels would be done through the Chairman. 

• A draft performance reporting template would be available for the next meeting. 

• Reporting of domestic abuse had increased. 

• There was a slow reduction in re-offending. 

• The Community Safety Strategic Assessment was underway – this would assess 
all crime across the county and would be used to prioritise how to deal with it. 

• Locally, street drinking remained a problem along the riverbank, although targeted 
work was being done on this.  Work being undertaken on DPPO legislation, due 
to come into effect next year, could assist with this issue. 

Page 10



- 22 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• Inspector Tyner was a member of a special group meeting at the Houses of 
Parliament looking into the new Anti Social Behaviour legislation and its 
practicalities on the ground. 

• A letter had been received from Lincolnshire Police requesting authority to 
consider giving powers to PCSOs to issue fixed penalty notices in respect of 
graffiti, fly tipping, littering, dog control and dog fouling.  The Portfolio Holder 
requested the views of the Panel on this matter. 

• CCTV – The county wide report had been received but the cost was too 
expensive.  An alternative option of working with Boston was now being given 
consideration, and the Cabinet would make a decision on this in December.  This 
new option would provide 24/7 monitoring from Boston, with access to Police 
airwaves (although there was a cheaper option of 18/7 available where cameras 
recorded in the early hours but were not monitored).  All 28 cameras could be 
replaced (if needed), at a cost of £95,000. The Police and Crime Commission 
were to provide £59,000 towards this, the County Council £17,000, leaving an 
amount of £21,000 for SHDC to contribute.  A suggestion had been made by the 
Leader that ward members may wish to use their Designated Budgets to 
contribute towards the capital costs, with Spalding Town Forum, and parish 
councils that had CCTV to be approached for revenue funding.  Revenue costs 
for all 28 cameras would be around £31,000.  Holbeach Parish Council would be 
considering CCTV at its meeting in November, as they wished to pay for 5 
cameras. 

 
Following the update, the Panel considered the information and the following issues 
were raised: 
 

• How many Special Constables were there in South Holland? 
o The Portfolio Holder had no breakdown of these figures but would 

report the information back. 
 

• Rural crime was rising - had recent policing campaigns been the best use of 
resources? 

o The campaign to stop cycling in pedestrianised areas had been a local 
campaign.  A current campaign, Operation Galileo, was targeting the 
problem of hare coursing.  There was a possible mismatch between 
local issues and some campaigns being undertaken. 

 

• Were the police or local authority officers responsible for enforcing the new 
legislation relating to scrap metal dealers? 

o The Portfolio Holder commented that the local authority licensing team 
would be responsible for issuing licences, and the police for 
enforcement.  However, this needed to be clarified, in addition to the 
resource that the Police would put into enforcing this new legislation, 
and how the public should be made aware of ways to report any 
contraventions.  He would report back to the Panel.       

 
 
 

Page 11



- 23 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• Had the use of street pastors had any effect on social behaviour? 
o It was too early yet to tell, however, a report in the future would be 

useful.  The Police Crime Commission had identified benefits and 
provided them with more money. 

 

• Was there any more interest in volunteers monitoring CCTV? 
o Legislation had changed, becoming tighter, and it was now difficult for 

volunteers to get clearance to monitor CCTV. 
 

• With regard to PCSOs being given powers to issue fixed penalty notices, 
members asked what seniority of PCSO would be given these powers? 

o The Portfolio Holder responded that it would only be paid PCSOs who 
would be given these powers, and not volunteer PCSOs. 

 

• The Panel considered whether they would be in favour of PCSOs being given 
additional powers.  It was felt that PCSOs with additional powers would be 
welcome, as they would provide a visible presence, and the Panel agreed that 
these additional powers should be given to salaried PCSOs.   

 

• What organisation enforced the monitoring of CCTV? 
o The Portfolio Holder was not aware, but would ascertain and report the 

information back to the Panel. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society be 

noted; 
 
b) That the Panel’s view on PCSOs possibly being given powers to issue fixed 

penalty notices in respect of graffiti, fly tipping, littering, dog control and dog 
fouling be passed on; and 

 
c) That the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society report back to the Panel in 

due course any outstanding information, as detailed in this minute, that he was 
not able to provide at the meeting. 

 
(The Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society left the meeting following 
consideration of the above item). 
 

26. CARBON MANAGEMENT PLAN TASK GROUP UPDATE  

 
The Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational 
Planning attended the meeting to provide an update on the recommendations made 
by the Carbon Management Plan Task Group.  Previous updates had been received 
at Panel meetings held on 7 December 2011, 10 July 2012 and 26 March 2013.  
 
During the last update on 26 March 2013, members raised a number of issues.  
These are detailed below, alongside responses from the Portfolio Holder: 

Page 12



- 24 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

 

• Recommendation 4 – It was important that relevant officers communicated with 
the appropriate department at Lincolnshire County Council with regard to the 
automatic metering project, in order for this to move forward.  

o Regular contact with LCC had been made throughout the project. The 
contract had now been signed and access to electricity data was now 
available. 

 

• Recommendation 4 - With regard to service charges for rented areas within the 
Priory Road offices, these should not be set and fixed at the start of the period. A 
cost escalator needed to be built in to allow for probable rises in the cost of fuel 
and reduction in fuel usage when energy was saved. Rental arrangements 
needed to be looked at more closely to ensure that neither party was 
disadvantaged by changes in cost/usage.  

o Service charges for rented areas within the Priory Road offices had to 
be set at the start of the lease period as they required prior agreement 
with the incoming tenant.  

o A cost escalator for Service Charges had not been included in previous 
Priory Road leases and this had been agreed by the relevant Portfolio 
Holders at the time. 

o The Assets & Property department would seek to include provisions 
for future Priory Road leases to allow for fluctuations in running costs, 
and would review them annually thereafter. 

o It should be noted that some current tenants had charitable status and 
the terms for their occupation of Priory Road had been influenced by 
their funding and ability to pay.  

o However, the current rental value and service charge costs would be 
reported in any future Portfolio Holder Reports for Priory Road lettings if 
the rents and service charges to be agreed were less than current 
rates. 

 

• Recommendation 5 - With regard to insulation of the roof space and cavity walls 
for the ‘old’ building, the Panel asked how it could help to progress this. The 
Portfolio Holder advised that at the Panel’s request, he could ask the Carbon 
Management Officer to pursue this project, and the Panel agreed that this should 
be done.  

o The loft insulation was installed at the end of 2012/13 to a depth of 
300mm (the current recommended minimum depth was 270mm).  

o The Asset and Property department hoped that the cavity wall 
insulation would be carried out before the end of the year, providing 
budgets allowed this. 

 

• Recommendation 5 – There should be a work plan for carbon management 
improvements to the council housing stock similar to existing improvement 
schemes such as kitchen replacements.  

o In terms of carbon management related improvements to the housing 
stock, the following would fall into that category: 

Page 13



- 25 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

(i) Replacement of old, inefficient, gas fired back boilers with new high 
efficiency condensing boilers - this formed the main part of the 
ongoing central heating upgrade programme  

(ii) Where mains gas was available, the removal of electric storage 
heater systems and installation of new high efficiency gas boiler fed 
heating systems ("fuel switching") - the final remaining properties 
identified were currently having this work undertaken.  

(iii) Fitting of external wall insulation to properties which did not have 
cavity walls - this work was nearing completion, with less than 30 
properties remaining currently, but due to be completed by early 
summer 2013  

(iv) There was also an ongoing programme of loft insulation work, where 
existing loft insulation was checked and, where deemed inadequate, 
topped up to meet current standards 

o In addition to the above, measures already completed across the 
housing stock included: 

(i) the replacement of all windows to dwellings with double glazed 
windows  

(ii) the replacement of all entrance doors to dwellings with double 
glazed composite doors  

(iii) the installation of cavity wall insulation to all dwellings which had 
cavity walls 

o There was not a specific work plan targeting "carbon" issues 
specifically, as most of the above work aimed to improve the "thermal 
comfort" for tenants in their homes - carbon reduction was another 
benefit from undertaking this work, but was not the primary focus. 

 

• Recommendation 5 – Thermal imaging should be undertaken at the Castle Sports 
Centre and the bowls hall to ascertain its levels of carbon efficiency and to identify 
areas for improvement.  

o The Carbon Management Officer had been seeking advice on how 
much a thermal survey would cost. She had been advised that only 
aerial thermal imaging had been used for the REV ACTIVE project 
which would not be suitable for the small size of the sites in question. 
Other options were to hire a thermal imaging camera, or to commission 
a survey to be done. Costs of this were not presently known. After 
speaking to the Housing Landlord Manager, there was currently no 
capacity to carry out this survey in house, but in November/December, 
he would be open to the idea if the capacity was available within the 
team to do the survey. 

 
Following this update, the following issues were raised: 
 

• With the continuing rise in electricity bills, were there plans to embed carbon 
management more robustly? 

o There were currently no firm plans.  The Carbon Management Officer 
operated more as a monitoring officer rather than an enforcer.  To date, 
successes had been based mainly on financial savings, lesser 

Page 14



- 26 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

measures were currently being undertaken however, the Authority 
would eventually run out of options, and more investment was required.  
A corporate wide approach was needed.     

 

• What was happening with regard to insulation of the old building and to the 
heating system? 

o Some insulation had been undertaken towards the end of 2012/13 and 
cavity wall insulation would be added before the end of the current year, 
if budgets allowed. 

o The main problem with the heating system was its age, and that there 
were not separate systems within the building.  It would be a large job 
to modulise the heating system. 

 

• The Authority did not appear to have a corporate policy relating to carbon 
management? 

o The Authority did have a good carbon management plan, but it had 
never been formally adopted.  It would be useful to have a performance 
management system, with a start point for each area alongside what 
was to be achieved.  This was going to happen as part of the 
performance management system. 

 
AGREED: 

 
That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green 
Spaces and Operational Planning be noted. 
 
(The Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational 
Planning left the meeting following discussion of the above item.) 
 

27. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY  

 
The Panel, at its meeting on 30 May 2012, had expressed its interest in undertaking 
a piece of work on Communications, in particular communication and consultation by 
the County Council with the District and Parish Councils and communication by the 
District Council with Members.  The Joint Communications Team Leader had 
attended the next meeting on 10 July 2012 and advised that the Authority was in the 
early stages of looking at the development of a Corporate Communications Strategy.  
He suggested that guidance should be sought from the Panel as to how to take this 
forward.  He also felt that protocols needed to be changed so that Members were 
more informed.  Members had requested that the Joint Communications Team 
Leader bring proposals on how to take this piece of work forward back to the Panel.  
The Joint Communications Team Leader was unable to attend this meeting, and the 
Assistant Director, Democratic Services was therefore in attendance to provide the 
following updates: 
 

• The previous Communications Officer had left the Authority, and a replacement 
had now been appointed on a fixed term contract.  

Page 15



- 27 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• The Authority was in the early stages of undertaking a review of the 
Communications department, day to day functions within the department were still 
continuing however, development of the Communications Strategy was on hold.    

• Officers were encouraged to keep ward members informed. 

• The Communications Team promptly added press releases to the website. 

• Portfolio Holders were a source of information for other members. 

• Breckland Council had introduced a Member/Officer pledge with regard to 
communication.  This could be circulated at the Scrutiny Away Day being held the 
next day if members wished. 

• Information from the County Council did not come as a matter of course, as there 
were no formal channels.  Information could be accessed from the website or by 
approaching County Councillors. 

• Information such as consultation was passed on as a matter of course. 

• Parish Councils were communicated with on relevant services. 
 
Following the update, members raised the following issues: 
 

• Some members sat on Parish Councils and saw the information that came 
through to them from County and District Councils.  It was felt to be purely 
passing on information, not communication.  An explanation or summary was 
needed.  In addition, some members felt that communication from the District 
Council regarding CCTV had been very poor. 

• District Council members, who were also County Councillors or Portfolio Holders, 
were sometimes aware of information but did not pass this on to other District 
Councillors or members in relevant wards.  This could be more of an issue than 
the County Council not communicating.   

• The website was not always the best way to keep people updated. 

• Sometimes members read in the newspaper about District Council issues. 

• What  timescales were involved for the Strategy? 
 
The Assistant Director, Democratic Services advised that there was a timeline for the 
Communications service review, a report would be available within the next few 
months, and a strategy would follow. 
  
AGREED: 

 
That the information provided by the Assistant Director, Democratic Services, be 
noted. 
 
(The Assistant Director, Democratic Services left the meeting following discussion of 
the above item). 
 

28. ANNUAL INSPECTION OF PLANNING FILES  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director, Democratic Services 
which reported on the annual inspection of Planning files. 
 

Page 16



- 28 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

Since 2009, two members of the Performance Monitoring Panel had undertaken an 
annual inspection of Planning files to ensure that recommendations from the 
Development Control Improvement Plan (Improving File Discipline and Maintenance 
of Site Notes and Records of Meetings) were being upheld.   
 
In July 2013, Councillors D Wilkinson and R Rudkin had visited the Planning offices 
to carry out the review.  The Development Manager provided them with an overview 
of the current procedures used to record discussions between Planning Officers and 
applicants, both before and after a planning application had been submitted.   
 
The procedure for recording any pre planning enquiries remained the same, and was 
recorded on Ocella, the electronic document management system.  Verbal enquiries 
were not recorded, only emails and letters. 
 
Councillors Wilkinson and Rudkin were provided with some paper applications to 
view, and compared the same application once it had been scanned to the Ocella 
system.  The online application was consistent with the paper file.  The files viewed 
were consistent and included all relevant documentation however, some of the hand 
written documents that were included were not always legible. 
 
The Panel considered the information provided and agreed that the systems 
appeared to be working well.  However, the following issues were raised: 
 

• By only recording on file details of emails and letters, the full picture was not being 
seen.  The lack of recording of verbal advice was an issue. 

• The Authority could not afford to have any gaps in the advice that it recorded – 
non recording of verbal advice was a flaw in the system.   

 
It was agreed that a way needed to be found of gaining a fuller picture of all advice 
given for each planning application, and members requested that the Planning 
Manager attend the next Panel meeting to see if gaps could be highlighted.   
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the report be noted; and 
 
b) That the Planning Manager attend the next meeting of the Panel to consider how 

any gaps in the recording of planning advice could be rectified. 
 

29. REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTED PLANNING DECISIONS  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Planning Manager which provided an 
update on the response to the Panel’s recommendations by the Planning Committee. 
 
After the tour took place, a report had been submitted to the Panel on 24 July 2013, 
detailing the conclusions drawn from the review.  It was agreed that the following 
recommendations be made to the Planning Committee: 
 

Page 17



- 29 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

• That it be recommended to the Planning Committee that the Review of 
Implemented Planning Decisions tour continue on a biennial basis. 

• That for future tours, a more consistent method of scoring be devised and a more 
structured way of reflecting Members’ comments be considered. 

 
These conclusions were subsequently presented to the Planning Committee on 25 
September 2013, where members had a wide ranging discussion which questioned 
the usefulness of the process.  Specifically, concerns were expressed regarding 
outcomes that influenced planning decisions or resulted in changes to planning 
policies.  The Planning Committee decided that the tour, in its current format, to have 
outlived its usefulness, and to this extent had served its purpose.  Should the review 
continue, it needed to focus on areas where planning decisions were falling short and 
look at areas where the Planning Policy Team should be looking to add policies to 
the Local Plan. 
 
The Panel considered the decision of the Planning Committee, and the following 
issues arose: 
 

• The main failing of the most recent tour was felt to be the way in which the day 
was planned.  Insufficient member suggestions had been forthcoming and it had 
been left to the Planning Manager to provide suggestions.   

• The opinions of members on the day were not sufficiently reflected in the report.  
Members had provided comments verbatim on the comments form, it had not 
been made clear to members that this information would form part of the report, 
and as such the final version of this had not completely reflected their opinions. 

• A different approach was required.  Perhaps members could meet before the tour 
to decide which sites should be visited. 

• Members needed to be more proactive with respect to the tour and its outcomes. 

• Consideration of the Planning Protocol was required, to ascertain and clarify the 
remit of the tour. 

• Previous tours had been very valuable, and members wished for the review to 
continue. 

• The Planning Manager should be asked to attend the next meeting of the Panel to 
discuss with members a way forward with regard to improving the tour. 

 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the report of the Planning Manager be noted; 
 
b) That consideration be given to the Planning Protocol to ascertain and clarify the 

remit of the tour; and 
 
c) That the Planning Manager be asked to attend the next meeting of the Panel to 

discuss with members a way forward with regard to improving the tour. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



- 30 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

15 October 2013 

 

 

 

30. PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director (Democratic Services) 
which set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work 
Programme consisted of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and the second 
setting out the Task Groups that had been identified by the Panel. 
 

AGREED: 

 
That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out in the report of the 
Assistant Director (Democratic Services) be noted. 
 
(The meeting ended at 9.05 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Gary Stephens, ICT Director 

Compass Point Business Services (East Coast), Ltd   
    

To:    Performance Monitoring Panel - 3 December 2013 
 
Author:  Gary Stephens, ICT Director 

Compass Point Business Services (East Coast), Ltd 
 
Subject: Proposed ICT Improvements for Councillors 
 
Purpose: To improve Councillors’ ease of access to Council systems via 

their existing laptops. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Councillors have, over the years, experienced difficulties when logging into the 

Council’s systems via their laptops at home. 
 
1.2 The difficulties range from logging in more than once to having to use secure 

tokens, which can be a slow and laborious process. 
 

1.3 In addition, the current arrangements mean Councillors are far more likely to 
have to bring their laptops into the office if something goes wrong; instead of 
being able to phone up and ask for a ‘remote fix’; which is a better use of their 
time.  

 
1.4 Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd is the Council’s shared 

service Company responsible for the provision of ICT services to South 
Holland District Council. 

 
2.0 PROPOSED NEW WAY TO ACCESS SYSTEMS 
 
2.1 It is proposed that a new way to access Council systems is introduced. This 

new approach is known as Remote Access Point. The Remote Access Point 
solution has the following benefits: 
 
a) It only requires a single password in order to log on and access Council 
systems. 
 
b) Where the Remote Access Point is being used on a council laptop, 
Councillors will no longer need to use secure tokens to access their emails 
and any other Council system available to them. 

Recommendation:  
 
That the proposed new ICT remote access point solution be considered. 
 

Agenda Item 4.

Page 21



 

 
c) It will be quicker to log on.  
 
d) Councillors will be able to phone up if they experience a problem with their 
laptop and an ICT Help Desk team member will be able to remotely log onto 
their machine. Councillors are assured that the ICT Help Desk is unable to 
access any other devices within Councillors’ homes. 
 
e) Laptops will be able to be updated with the latest security and software, 
which is a government security requirement, without laptops having to be 
brought into the building. 
 
f) The solution provides Councillors with a telephone capability as if they were 
using the telephones within the Council premises. 
 
g) It is more secure. It improves the protection afforded to Councillors and the 
Council in respect of hacking and other forms of ICT security attack. 
 
h) The cost of implementation is less than £5,000 in total. 

 
2.2 The proposed Remote Access Point device is shown below: 

 

 
 
It is small, the size of a big box of matches. It only requires to be plugged in to 
a power supply and plugged into the councillor’s existing broadband router.  

 
2.3 It can be connected to councillors’ laptops by a fixed cable or by wireless 

connections as required. 
 
2.4 Each Councillor would also be provided with a telephone handset shown 

below:  

 
 
This handset simply plugs into the side of the laptop. A software application is 
opened on screen and telephone numbers can be dialled directly or 
councillors will be able to link into the council’s phone directory (only when the 
laptop is switched on). This would allow Councillors to be assigned a direct 
dial number from within the range currently assigned to SHDC, together with 

Page 22



 

voice mail. This would function with the same capability as the fixed phones in 
the Council’s offices. 
 

3.0 OPTIONS 
 
3.1 Option 1 - Do Nothing – this option would see the continuation of the 

unsatisfactory situation described above and is therefore not recommended. 
 
3.2 Option 2 – Issue members with new devices – other councils have 

successfully introduced tablet devices in order to help reduce the need to print 
out paper agendas. This is maybe something to consider in 2015 when the 
laptops are ready for replacement. 

 
3.3 Option 3 – Implement a Remote Access Point solution – This is the 

recommended option as described above in section 2 of this report. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED TIMELINE 
 
4.1 If approved the existing laptops would need to be reconfigured. 
 
4.2 It is anticipated that each Councillor would need to bring their laptop into the 

ICT department for a two day period for it to be reconfigured. The ICT team 
proposes to tackle this task, two laptops at a time. 

 
4.3 Reconfiguration would be complete by the end of January 2014 if Councillors 

are able to bring in their laptops during this period.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon footprint and environmental issues have been considered, and in the 

opinion of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Constitution and legal implications have been considered. The Council has an 

obligation to adhere to the requirements of the Data Protection Act. The 
recommended proposal improves data security arrangements.  

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contract implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. This solution supersedes the previous arrangements.  
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered, and in the opinion of 

the report writer, there are none. 
 

Page 23



 

5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 Equality and Diversity and Human Rights implications have been considered, 

and in the opinion of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 Each Remote Access Point device (with telephone handset) will cost 

approximately £120 to supply.  
 
5.6.2 If all 37 Councillors adopt this solution then the costs will be less than £5,000 

in total. This can be funded from existing ICT budgets. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 By adopting the proposed solution it will help to make the councillors’ laptops 

more resilient against viruses or hacking attempts. 
 

5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 Staffing implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 It is anticipated that the recommendations of the PMP Committee will be 

considered by the Portfolio Holder for ICT in due course. Also, it is understood 
that an ICT Working Group is already established, and that meetings will be 
called, when required, to advise on future ICT requirements. 

  
5.10 Other  
 
5.10.1 This proposed solution does have the following implications:  

 
a) The solution presents the secure Council system to councillors in their own 
homes. Councillors will not be able to access their personal email accounts 
from the council laptops, e.g. Hotmail, Google Mail etc. In addition, access to 
inappropriate websites will also be prevented. Please note this will not affect 
any personal ICT equipment at home. 
 
b) The process of reconfiguring laptops in order to work with the new Remote 
Access Point devices may cause a loss of personal data stored on the existing 
laptops. We would recommend that Councillors back up any files stored 
before the reconfiguration takes place. 
 
c) Any non-council licenced software will be unavailable after the 
reconfiguration takes place. This is a consequence of increased security 
standards required by Government. Such unsupported software creates a 
significant weakness in the Council’s ICT arrangements. 

 

Page 24



 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    Gary Stephens 
Telephone Number:  01507 613207 
Email:     gary.stephens@cpbs.com 
 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  None 
 
      
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 KEY DECISION PLAN 
 
 

 Issued –  21/11/2013 
 

 

 
Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the 

decision is likely to be made, to:   
Shelley French, Member Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE  

Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk. 
 

The Key Decision Plan shows all key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision 
is expected to be made.  Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget 
and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies). 
 
The definition of a “key decision” is: 
“A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more Wards of the Council 
and /or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any single financial year 
above the threshold of £69,800 in respect of revenue expenditure and £172,200 in respect of capital expenditure.”  
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION A
genda Item

 8.

P
age 27



 2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor G A 
Porter 
gporter@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Customer 
Access 
Strategy 

To approve the creation of a shared Customer 
Access Strategy and specific Channel 
Management Plans and to approve the 
procurement and implementation of an 
electronic service delivery capability to enable 
customer self-service and channel shift. 
 
Not for Publication by virtue of Paragraphs 2, 3 
and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

Customers, 
Customer groups, 
Businesses, Frontline 
staff and CMT 
 
Consultation 
approach will be 
defined as part of a 
comprehensive 
Communications 
Plan 
 

Customer 
Access Strategy 
Report 

Cabinet* 10/12/2013 
 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
Draft  General 
Fund 
Estimates, 
Medium Term 
Plan and 
Capital 
Strategy 
 
 

To approve the release of the draft estimates 
for consultation 

Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Briefing 
 
Meetings 

Report to 
Cabinet 
10/12/2013 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Cabinet* 10/12/2013 

P
age 28



 3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
Draft HRA 
Estimates and 
Capital 
Programme 

To approve the release of the draft estimates 
for consultation.   

Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Briefing 
 
Meetings 

Report to 
Cabinet 
10/12/2013 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Cabinet* 10/12/2013 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
Quarterly 
Finance 
Report: 
Quarter 2 
 
 

To approve recommendations Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Briefing  

Report to 
Cabinet 
10/12/2013 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Cabinet* 10/12/2013 P
age 29



 4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
Draft Housing 
Revenue 
Account  
Budget for 
2014-15 

Draft Housing Revenue Budget for 201/15 be 
approved.   
 
The rent increase be approved and the 
statutory period of notice is served on tenants. 
The Housing Revenue Account charges, 
heating, water and room hire charges be 
approved.   

Governance and 
Audit Committee  
 
Cabinet 14/01/2014 

Report to 
Cabinet 
14/01/2014 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Council** 22/01/2014 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
Quarterly 
Finance 
Report: 
Quarter 3 
 
  

To approve recommendations Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Briefing 
 
Meetings 

Report to 
Cabinet 
18/201/2014 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Cabinet* 18/02/2014 

P
age 30



 5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Spalding 
Gypsy and 
Traveller Site 
 

To award the works contract Portfolio Holder for 
Assets and Property, 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire 
 
Portfolio Holder 
briefings – ongoing.   

As detailed in 
report 
 
Decision Notice 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Officer (Duncan Hall)  
25/2/14 
 
The above date is a guideline 
and it is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of 
February 2014 or early March 
2014 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
 
General Fund 
Estimates, 
Medium Term 
Plan and 
Capital 
Strategy 

Council to receive recommendations from 
Cabinet for adoption 

Cabinet 18/02/2014 
 
Consultation 
complete  
 
Report 

Report to 
Cabinet 
18/02/2014 
(not yet 
published) 
 
 
Cabinet report 
to Council 
26/02/2014 
(not yet 
published) 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Council** 26/02/2014 
 
 

P
age 31



 6

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
 
Council Tax 
Setting 

To approve the level of Council Tax for South 
Holland District Council and Spalding Special 
Expenses 

Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Briefing.   
 
Meetings 
Consultation 
completed previously  
 
Website and 
Correspondence 

Report to 
Council 
26/02/2014] 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Council** 26/02/2014 

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlak@s
holland.gov.uk 
 
 
Treasury 
Management 
and Annual 
Investment 
Strategy and 
MRP Policy 

To approve the Treasury Management and 
Annual Investment Strategy 

Meetings  
 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Report to 
Council 
26/02/2014 
(not yet 
published) 
 

Council** 26/02/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 32



 7

*Cabinet Membership 

Councillor G A Porter – Leader of the Council 
Councillor C N Worth – Deputy Leader of the Council (Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 
Councillor P S Przyszlak – Deputy Leader (Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services) 
Councillor M G Chandler (Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning) 
Councillor H R Johnson (Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Commercial Assets and Strategic Planning) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder for Housing Landlord) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development) 

  
 
 
 
 

**Council Membership 

Councillor B Alcock 
Councillor G R Aley 
Councillor D Ashby 
Councillor J E Avery 
Councillor F Biggadike 
Councillor M D Booth 
Councillor S M Booth 
Councillor C J T H Brewis 
Councillor A Casson 
Councillor M G Chandler 
Councillor R Clark 
Councillor P E Coupland 
Councillor R J H Creese 

Councillor G K Dark 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones 
Councillor R Grocock 
Councillor A Harrison 
Councillor M Howard 
Councillor H R Johnson 
Councillor J King 
Councillor C J Lawton 
Councillor A Miller 
Councillor A M Newton  
Councillor R Perkins 
Councillor G A Porter 

Councillor P S Przyszlak 
Councillor A Puttick 
Councillor R M Rudkin 
Councillor M D Seymour 
Councillor S Slade 
Councillor E Sneath 
Councillor G J Taylor 
Councillor A C Tennant 
Councillor D J Wilkinson 
Councillor S Wilkinson 
Councillor A R Woolf 
Councillor C N Worth 

 
 
 

P
age 33



 8

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Shelley French, Member Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk 
 

 

P
age 34



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Darren Spillett – CSU General Manager 
 
To:    Performance Monitoring Panel - 3 December 2013 
 
(Author:  Darren Spillett - CSU General Manager) 
 
Subject: CSU Update 
 
Purpose: To update the Performance Monitoring Panel on progress made at 

the CSU 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Introduction 
 
1.1.1 This report provides an overview of the progress made by the Construction 

Services Unit (CSU) over the past six months. It will provide a brief overview of 
the following items; vehicle contract, IT, KPI’s, customer services and the 
management structure. 

 
1.2 Vehicle Contract 
 
1.2.1 The new vehicles were delivered in June. All of the new vehicles have been 

fitted with purpose built racking and they are all sign written with the SHDC 
logo and contact details. Three of the existing vehicles have been retained for 
the planned work that the CSU carries out. 

 
1.3 IT 
 
1.3.1 CPBS are in the process of producing a scheme of works to further improve 

the IT integration between the CSU system and the customer service system. 
Once the scheme has been produced, it will be reviewed to consider if the 
implementation offers a suitable return on investment.  

 
1.3.2 A capital bid has been submitted for an integrated asset management system. 

A number of systems have been investigated and a sum of £105,000 has 
been requested to purchase the new system.  

 
1.4 KPI’s 
 
1.4.1 The CSU is maintaining the level of performance seen previously. All 

emergency jobs are completed with target. The average turnaround time for 
urgent jobs is 8 working days and the average turnaround time for routine jobs 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Performance Monitoring Panel consider progress made at the 
Construction Services Unit (CSU). 

Agenda Item 9.

Page 35



is 16 working days. 83% of the jobs undertaken result in a first time fix. The 
average value of work carried out by each operative per year is £88,000. 
Customer satisfaction remains at 100% with complaints levels at 
approximately 0.1%.  

 
1.5 Customer Services 
 
1.5.1 The CSU and customer services have maintained their communication links 

and the two teams meet regularly to discuss any issues discovered.  
 
1.6 Management Structure 
 
1.6.1 In June the CSU Manager took on the role of Property Asset Manager in 

addition to his existing duties. This arrangement will be reviewed in 12 months 
to determine if this is the best solution or if an alternative management 
structure should be implemented. As part of the changes to the management 
structure, a new technical officer role has been created. This role will work 
with both the property and CSU teams in order to offer support with ongoing 
projects. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 The Panel may: 
 

a. Consider the progress report and if satisfied, request that no further update 
reports be received; 

b. Consider the progress report and request that a further update be received 
within a specified time; or 

c. Do nothing 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Over the last three years, two Task Groups have been formed to consider 

issues with the CSU and following the recommendations of the most recent 
Task Group, the Panel has requested that an update report be presented in 
order that progress on recommendations can be monitored. 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 By receiving regular update reports on the Task Group recommendations, the 

Panel can ensure that progress is being made. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 This report is for information only and carries no Carbon Footprint or 

Environmental implication issues. 
 
 

Page 36



5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report is for information only and carries no Constitution or Legal 

implication issues. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 This report is for information only and carries no Contract implication issues. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 This report is for information only and carries no Crime and Disorder 

implication issues. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 This report is for information only and carries no Equality and Diversity and 

Human Rights implication issues. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 This report is for information only and carries no financial implication issues. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 CSU functions are fully considered in the Council’s operational risk 

assessment 
 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 This report is for information only and carries no Staffing implication issues. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 This report is for information only and carries no Consultation implication 

issues. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 All wards are affected as the CSU operates across the whole district.  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers: - None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    Darren Spillett 
Telephone Number:  01775 764672 
Email:    dspillett@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report:   None 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Assistant Director – Democratic Services 
 
To:    Performance Monitoring Panel – 3 December 2013 
   Policy Development Panel – 7 January 2013 
 
(Author:  Lynn Eldred, Principal Member Services Officer) 
 
Subject: Scrutiny Action Plan 
 
Purpose: To agree a Scrutiny Action Plan following the Away Day held on 

16th October 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Biennially the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel 

hold an away day to examine the way that overview and scrutiny is 
undertaken at South Holland District Council. 

 
1.2 An away day was held on 16th October 2013.  Councillors from both Panels 

were invited with 13 Councillors attending.  In addition the day was attended 
by the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Director – 
Democratic Services and was supported by Member Services Officers. 

 
1.3 By using discussion and exercises the away day considered the following 

areas: 
 

• What Councillors wanted from Scrutiny and how that should be 
achieved 

 

• Task Groups 
 

• Budget Scrutiny 
 

• Training 
 
1.4 Councillors were invited to complete a feed-back questionnaire about the day.  

Feed back was positive with an average mark of 9 out of 10 awarded for 
overall opinion of the event. 

 
 

Recommendation(s):  
 
That consideration be given to the Scrutiny Action Plan set out in the 
appendix to this report. 
 
 

Agenda Item 12.

Page 39



2. OUTCOME  
 

2.1 The following issues were identified for inclusion in an Action Plan: 
 

• Effective scrutiny information is required for new members and officers 
 

• It takes a long time for issues to reach a conclusion and meetings are 
far apart. 

• How to assess suitability of items for scrutiny 

• Do the names of the Scrutiny Panels tell the public or Officers what 
they do ? 

• Scrutiny does not get Officer feedback 

• Scrutiny needs to be informed that action has been taken or the matter 
resolved if personnel issues have been reported to the Head of Paid 
Service. 

• Some meetings are too long and have too many agenda items 

• For Scrutiny to be effective it  needs to be able to require contractors to 
attend or support scrutiny 

• Task Groups sometimes take too long  

• Information requested by Task Groups of Officers is sometimes not 
forthcoming 

• Clarity required regarding role of Task Group Lead Officer 

• Budget Scrutiny – timing means too late to influence 
 

 
2.2 These issues have been included in the draft Action Plan attached as 

appendix 1 to this report.  The Action Plan has also identified what action is 
required to try to address the issues raised, who is responsible and a gives a 
proposed timescale. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 The action plan is intended to improve the Council’s scrutiny function. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 The action plan sets out a target completion date for each task. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 There are no direct carbon and waste reduction implications in this report. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 The constitution is currently being reviewed and any issues arising from the 

action plan will be completed in time for inclusion in the new constitution. 
 
 

Page 40



5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 There are no direct contract implications. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 There are no direct equality, diversity and human rights implications. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items from the action plan are progressed their legal implications will 
be assessed. 

 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 There are no direct risk management implications associated with this report.  

As individual items from the action plan  are progressed their legal implications 
will be assessed. 

 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 There are no direct staffing implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items from the action plan  are progressed their legal implications 
will be assessed.  

  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 The action plan is to be agreed by the Performance Monitoring Panel and the 

Policy Development Panel. 
  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None. 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Lynn Eldred, Principal Member Services Officer 
Telephone Number: 01775 764626 
Email: leldred@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Action Plan. 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Scrutiny Away Day Action Plan 2013 
 

 ISSUE ACTION RESPONSIBLE PERSON  SUPPORTED 
BY 

TIMESCALE 
FOR 
DELIVERY 

1 Effective scrutiny 
information is required for 
new members and officers  

Liaise with Councillor 
Development Board and 
Human Resources regarding 
induction process 
 

Human Resources 
Manager  

Member 
Services  
 

Members 
February 
2015 
Officers 
March 2014 

2 It takes a long time for 
issues to reach a conclusion 
and meetings are far apart. 
 

Programme of meetings to be 
reviewed and report made to 
Scrutiny Panels. 

Principal Member 
Services Officer  
 

Scrutiny 
Councillors 

March 2014 

3 How to assess suitability of 
items for scrutiny 

Panels to agree new criteria for 
assessing suitability of 
suggested scrutiny topics. 
 

Principal Member 
Services Officer  
 

Scrutiny Panels March 2014 

4 Do the names of the 
Scrutiny Panels tell the 
public or officers what they 
do ? 
 

Review Panel names and 
report to Scrutiny Panels (link 
to Constitution review) 

Principal Member 
Services Officer  
 

Scrutiny Panels March 2014 

5 Scrutiny does not get 
Officer feedback 

Request that any feedback 
made at exit interviews 
regarding scrutiny is passed to 
scrutiny Chairman. 
 
 

Human Resources 
Manager 

Principal 
Member 
Services Officer 
 

February 
2014 

P
age 43



 

 ISSUE ACTION RESPONSIBLE PERSON  SUPPORTED 
BY 

TIMESCALE 
FOR 
DELIVERY 

6 Scrutiny needs to be 
informed that action has 
been taken or the matter 
resolved if personnel issues 
have been reported to the 
Head of Paid Service. 
 

Protocol or guidance to be 
supplied to scrutiny on 
procedure to be followed and 
reporting back on actions 
 

Chief Executive 
 

Human 
Resources 
Manager 

February 
2014 

7 Some meetings are too long 
and have too many agenda 
items 
 
 

Review work programmes and 
consider Action Plan item 3 
above. 

Principal Member 
Services Officer 
 

Scrutiny 
Councillors 

March 2014 

8 For Scrutiny to be effective 
it  needs to be able to 
require contractors to attend 
or support scrutiny 
 
 

Consider writing into Service 
Level Agreements a 
requirement for contractors to 
attend/support scrutiny. 

Director of Commissioning CMT March 2014 

9 Task Groups sometimes 
take too long  
 
 

Review Task Group scoping 
document and training for 
Chairmen  
Address terms of reference in 
constitution review. 
Clarify expectations in officer 
training 
  

Principal Member 
Services Officer 

Scrutiny 
Councillors 

March 2014 

P
age 44



 

 ISSUE ACTION RESPONSIBLE PERSON  SUPPORTED 
BY 

TIMESCALE 
FOR 
DELIVERY 

10 Information requested by 
Task Groups of Officers is 
sometimes not forthcoming 
 
 

A member of CMT to ‘sponsor’ 
each Task Group.  
Raise scrutiny profile by 
Chairmen speaking to Key 
Officer Group 
 

CMT Principal 
Member 
Services Officer 

March 2014 

11 Clarity required regarding 
role of Task Group Lead 
Officer 

Pool of Task Group Lead 
Officers to be reviewed. 
Guidance to be reviewed and 
supplied to Lead Officers. 
 

Assistant Director – 
Democratic Services 
 

Principal 
Member 
Services Officer  

February 
2014 

12 Budget Scrutiny – timing 
means too late to influence 

Focus on Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. Put together 
draft plan and timeline for 
scrutiny event. 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Principal 
Member 
Services Officer  

February 
2014 

 

P
age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Vicky Thomson - Assistant Director, Democratic Services 
 
To:    Performance Monitoring Panel – 3 December 2013    
 
(Author:  Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer) 
 
Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring 

Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Background 
 
1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by 

the Panel for inclusion on its work programme. 
 
1.2 Issues 
 
1.2.1 Appendix 1 sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed 

items for consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by 
councillors or are being referred to the Panel from Officers or Cabinet.  This 
appendix will be updated as new items are identified. 

 
1.2.2 Appendix 2 sets out the Task Groups that have been identified by the Panel.  

The table shows: 
 

• The name of the Task Group 

• What it wants to achieve  

• Key dates 

• Membership of the Task Group 

• When the Task Group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the 

report as a standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by 
the Panel and provide the opportunity for Councillors to monitor the progress 
of its work programme. 

 
 
 
 

Recommendation:  
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues 

for discussion. 

Agenda Item 13.

Page 47



2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1  To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s Calendar of Work Programme 

items and the Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay 
relevant and up to date. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 The Calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will 

provide Members with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for 
various calendar items and proposed Task Groups within the Work 
Programme are included within the appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 There are no direct Carbon Footprint and Environment Issue implications 

associated with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the 
work programme, their Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issue implications 
will be assessed. 

 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 There are no direct Constitution & Legal implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
Constitution & Legal implications will be assessed. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 There are no direct Contract implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Contract    
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 There are no direct Crime and Disorder implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
Crime and Disorder implications will be assessed. 

 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 There are no direct Equality and Diversity & Human Rights implications 

associated with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the 
work programme, their Equality and Diversity & Human Rights implications will 
be assessed. 

Page 48



 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 There are no direct Financial implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Financial    
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 There are no direct Risk Management implications associated with this report.  

As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Risk 
Management implications will be assessed. 

 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 There are no direct Staffing implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Staffing    
implications will be assessed. 

  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 There are no direct Stakeholder/Consultation implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their    
implications will be assessed. 

  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 When a Task Group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work 

Programme, it is assessed against criteria covering Importance, Impact and 
Value for Money.  The ‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators 
consider how strongly the issue will affect a ward(s), customer group(s) or 
service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included on the Work 
Programme. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    Christine Morgan (Member Services Officer) 
Telephone Number:  01775 764454 
Email:     cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix 1 – Work Programme Calendar 
Appendix 2 – Task Group Work Programme 2013/14 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

APPENDIX 1 

 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 

ITEMS 
 

 
Date of Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

3 December 2013 
 

• The ICT and Customer Services Manager and an officer 
from CPBS to attend to provide an update to members’ 
questions and concerns regarding their IT provision 
(updates received 29 January 2013, 26 March 2013, 24 July 
and 15 October 2013).  In addition, the Portfolio Holder 
Internal Services, Performance and Business Development 
also to attend, if required.    

• Update on progress of the restructure of the CSU (from 
recommendations of reformed CSU Task Group) 

• Update on progress of inventory of appliances within 
properties (arising from CSU Task Group) – Richard 
Scorthorne/Darren Spillett 

• Annual Inspection of Planning Files – Following report to 
Panel in October on this year’s inspection, the Planning 
Manager to attend to provide information on verbal planning 
advice and how this is recorded. 

• Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Following 
report of recommendations from Planning Committee to the 
Panel in October, the Planning Manager to attend to 
consider changes and improvements to the next review.  

28 January 2014 
 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Reports – Quarter 1 and 
Quarter 2 Performance Monitoring Reports (15 October and 
3 December 2013 respectively) have been removed from 
the Work Programme as the way in which performance is 
reported is being reviewed.  A Quarter 3 report is anticipated 
in early 2014. 

8 April 2014 
 

• Crime and Disorder  - Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter 3) ANY 
ISSUES TO BE RAISED WITH JOINT PERFORMANCE 
TEAM LEADER PRIOR TO MEETING SO RESPONSES 
CAN BE AVAILABLE 

24 June 2014 • CIC Task Group/Red Lion Quarter Task Group – Following 
update to the Panel on 28 May 2013 on progress of the 
Action Plan (which had been developed to address both of 
the Task Groups recommendations), members requested 
that if any projects were undertaken over the next year, that 

Page 50



the Business Development Manager provide an update in a 
year’s time to report on progress and to see if the work 
undertaken had been of benefit. 

16 September 
2014 

•  

25 November 2014 •  

27 January 2015 •  

7 April 2015 •  

 

• Carbon Management Plan Task Group – Panel to consider whether a further 
update on the progress of the Task Group’s recommendations is required, 6 
months after last update by the Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green 
Spaces and Operational Planning (15 October 2013)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



APPENDIX 2 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2013/2014 

 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish the 
current situation with regard to CCTV and 
make recommendations to Cabinet on 
the way forward. 
Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service 
and prospects for future provision. 

6 
November 
2012  

21 
November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J 
Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 

Interim report 
to PMP 29 
January 
2013  
 
 

To look at the decision to 
review the position with 
regard to leisure facilities in 
two years time and whether 
the business plan on which 
the decision was based 
was robust.  

Joint Task Group incorporating members 
from both the Performance Monitoring 
and Policy Development Panels.  
Membership and scope to be confirmed. 

30 May 
2012 

To be 
confirmed 

To be 
confirmed 

To be 
confirmed 

To review the development 
of sporting activities across 
the district (in light of the 
possibility of new leisure 
provision in the future). 

 31 May 
2011 

   

P
age 52



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed 
date of report 
to Panel 

Corporate Communications 
Strategy 

On 31 May 2012, the Panel had 
expressed its interest in undertaking a 
piece of work on Communications, in 
particular communication and 
consultation by the County Council with 
the District and Parish Councils and 
communication by the District Council 
with Members. The Joint 
Communications Team Leader attended 
a meeting on 10 July 2012. The Assistant 
Director-Democratic Services provided a 
briefing on 15 October 2013, advised that 
there was a timeline for the 
Communications service review, a report 
would be available within the next few 
months, and a strategy would follow.  

31 May 
2012  

   

 

P
age 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.a) Special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	2.b) Performance Monitoring Panel
	4. Proposed ICT Improvements for Councillors
	8. Key Decision Plan
	9. CSU update
	12. Scrutiny Action Plan
	Draft Scrutiny Away Day Action Plan 2013

	13. Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

